
WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2014      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 1 of 5 

 

MINUTES 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Note:  These are summary minutes.  A tape recording of this meeting is on file in Wolcott 

Town Hall, Commission Secretary’s Office. 

 

Vice-Chair Cathe Sherman called the Public Hearing to order at 6:30 p.m. with the Pledge of 

Allegiance and attendance was taken.   

 

Roll Call Attendance 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Cathe Sherman, Chris Edquist, Angelo Mastrofrancesco,  

                                           Mike Bokon   

MEMBERS ABSENT:   Raymond Mahoney 

ALTERNATES PRESENT:  Virginia McHugh 

ALTERNATES ABSENT:   Rich Delpier 

ALSO PRESENT:  Dave Kalinowski, CZEO   

 

PERMIT APPLICATIONS  

 

1.  #14-502 Executive Hill LLC – Amendment to Zoning Map for Lot 5H on Grilley 

Rd. from Industrial to an R-40 Zone; 

2.  #14-501 Executive Hill LLC – Subdivision Application for 2 Lots from parcel 

known as Lot 5H on Grilley Rd. 

 

CZEO said we have a letter from the (Consulting) Town Engineer to be read into record and 

also that C.O.G. was asked to comment and they sent notification that they received our 

request but if we did not hear from them within 30 days then they had no response.   Mike 

Bokon read into record the letter from Mark Possidento dated March 28, 2014.  Angelo 

Mastrofrancesco read the letter from Chesprocott Health District dated Feb. 25, 2014 which is 

on file. 

 

CZEO said the reason there are two separate applications on the same public hearing because 

one has to do with a zone change and if the zone change is granted then the subdivision plan 

(submitted) goes along with the other application.   He said the Commission chose to do the 

public hearing (on both) to allow discussion because one has to do with the other and if one is 

not granted (zone change) then the other (subdivision) does not exist.  CZEO said that the 

(Consulting) Town Engineer in his letter made some comments regarding Steve Giudice’s 

application on the subdivision and Steve met all his requests. CZEO said when the Plan of 

Development was done you look at the properties in town as far as what is viable for Industrial, 

General Commercial, Residential, etc.    He said before the Commission tonight is the question 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2014      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 2 of 5 

 

of whether the zone change is within our Plan of Development, is it a benefit for the town or is 

it a problem for the town if you do develop a new lot.  Steve Giudice from Harry Cole and Son 

came forward on behalf of Executive Hill LLC.  He said the piece of property is actually 55.6 

acres and the applicant made a free cut in the front residential zone of the property.  He said the 

remaining property is industrial.  He said the applicant wishes to construct one home on lot 1 

of the subdivision map which would be approx. 2.3 acres and the intent is to construct one 

home and leave the rest as is.  He said the reason the zone change is a little larger is because of 

the frontage issue we felt to make the back piece comply with zoning it should be residential in 

frontage. He said from an industrial standpoint they would not have enough frontage and they 

didn’t necessarily need to change the whole piece (Lot 1 and Lot 2 on Zone Change Map) to 

residential they were just playing it safe. He said if the Commission felt that they wanted to 

leave that portion of the lot industrial (Lot 1 Zone Change Map) they are willing to do that too. 

Mr. Giudice said he wasn’t aware of the fact that there was sewers located approx. 200 ft. from 

this property but the property itself is very difficult in nature from a topographic standpoint.   

He said it is very steep, wetlands soils, and ledge and it does not lend itself towards an 

industrial development. He said the applicant’s intention is to turn the rest of the property to 

forestry.  He said the topographic issue is a major concern with this property and will prevent 

this property from being developed as an industrial use.   

 

Mr. Giudice said the subdivision plan shows Lot 1 as a 2.38 acre parcel which shows a bypass 

area for the driveway as suggested by the Town Engineer.   He said they talked about storm 

drainage and they extended the sedimentation barrier to Grilley Rd.  He said the well would be 

in back of property and septic in front.  He said they are planning on clearing just the area 

around the house, not the whole lot, and everything about the lot conforms to our regulations.  

There was more discussion on the topography and ledge on property and how it was not 

conducive for industrial development.  Cathe Sherman said her concern was in the engineer’s 

letter it was his opinion that the proposed change is not consistent with the Plan of 

Conservation and Development.  CZEO said the Plan of Development was not done just for 

this parcel but for the whole town.  He said they looked at the concept of development for the 

town, what part of town is better for residential, what part is better for industrial, and what part 

is better for general commercial.    He said does he encourage a zone change just so someone 

can build a house on it and he said no, but you have to look at every case because they are all 

different.   He said if the applicant is offering the option now not to change the second piece to 

ensure that he is going to just develop one parcel then the Commission has to ask themselves 

do you want to allow that one house to be built there or do you want to just leave it alone.  

Cathe Sherman said she was worried about setting a precedent with this and Steve Giudice said 

that he doesn’t believe a zone change sets a precedent, he said you have to look at zone 

changes on and individual basis.  He said with a zone change the idea is to look at the 

surrounding properties and in his opinion if this was surrounded by industrial buildings then he 

would not even come before this Commission but because there are residential homes all 

around the property, this does fit in with abutting properties.   He said when a zone change is  

 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2014      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 3 of 5 

 

requested the topography is not taken into consideration and asked the Commission to take into 

consideration the topography and that it is not feasible to develop as industrial.  There was a 

brief discussion as to how many pieces of industrial land there was in town and where located. 

There also was a brief discussion as to where this property came out on the other end and it 

was stated possibly the paper road (Grilley) that comes out on Wolcott Rd.  CZEO said there 

was a lot of information discussed tonight and you have time to review it and make your 

decision. There was more discussion on having the applicant just change Lot 1 on the Zone 

Amendment Map to residential and keep Lot 2 on said map as industrial with the remaining 

industrial land.   

  

There were no more comments from the public or the Commission and Vice-Chair Cathe 

Sherman stated that the public hearing on application #14-502 and 14-501 was closed at 7:12 

p.m. 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

At 7:13 p.m. Vice-Chair Cathe Sherman called the Regular Meeting to order.  (Attendance was 

taken and it was the same as listed above under Public Hearing). 

 

Virginia McHugh was seated as a regular member. 

 

PUBLIC REQUESTS 

 

There were no Public Requests at this time. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Upon MOTION by Mike Bokon, seconded by Chris Edquist, it was unanimously voted to 

APPROVE the minutes from the 3/19/2014 Regular Meeting. 

 

APPROVAL OF BILLS 

 

There were no bills at this time.  

 

CORRESPONDENCES 

 

There were no Correspondences at this time. 

 

SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

There were no Subcommittee Reports at this time.   



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2014      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 4 of 5 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS   

 

1. #14-502 Executive Hill LLC – Amendment to Zoning Map for Lot 5H on Grilley 

Rd. from Industrial to an R-40 Zone. 

 

Upon MOTION by Angelo Mastrofrancesco, seconded by Virginia McHugh, it was 

unanimously voted to TABLE #14-502 Executive Hill LLC – Amendment to Zoning Map for 

Lot 5H Grilley Rd. from Industrial to an R-40 Zone to the next meeting (on April 16, 2014). 

 

 

2. #14-501 Executive Hill LLC – Subdivision Application for 2 Lots from parcel 

known as Lot 5H on Grilley Rd.  

 

Upon MOTION by Angelo Mastrofrancesco, seconded by Virginia McHugh, it was 

unanimously voted to TABLE #14-501 Executive Hill LLC – Subdivision Application for 2 

Lots from parcel known as Lot 5H Grilley Rd. to the next meeting (on April 16, 2014). 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

There was no New Business at this time. 

   

CERTIFIED ZONING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER’S REPORT 

 

CZEO said he is drafting a letter to address a property on the north end of town that needs to be 

cleaned up.  He said a letter was written for property on the corner of Mad River and Wolcott 

Rd. and it did go before the Blight Committee and property is currently being cleaned up.  

Mike Bokon talked about another property on Wolcott Rd. (next to River Rest.) that needs to 

be cleaned up and a motor home located on the American Legion property.  CZEO 

recommended he read up on the blight ordinance as there is a lot that can be done now (on 

blighted property) you just need to fill out a form.  CZEO said if he wanted a letter to be drawn 

up by him the Commission just has to let him know.  Mike Bokon went on to ask about the 

policy of cars for sale, those on Wolcott Rd. that are not registered and CZEO explained it to 

him.  Mike Bokon also asked about the pizza restaurant that wants to go in where the old 

Carlucci’s used to be and said there is no grease trap installed and CZEO said they cannot open 

without S&W, Chesprocott’s or Fire Marshal’s signature.   

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

There was no Executive Session at this time.  

 

 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2014      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 5 of 5 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Upon MOTION by Mike Bokon, seconded by Angelo Mastrofrancesco, it was unanimously 

voted to ADJOURN the Regular Meeting at 7:22 p.m.  

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

___________________________  _______________________________ 

Cathe Sherman, Vice-Chair                           Edna Henderson, Recording Secretary 

Planning & Zoning Commission                    Planning & Zoning Commission 


